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access to authorized personnel only and
has safeguards in place to alert security
personnel if unauthorized personnel
attempt to gain access to OPM’s
environment. OPM employs armed
physical security guards 365 days a
year, 24 hours a day that patrol OPM
headquarters, to include entry and exit
points. Computer firewalls are
maintained to prevent access by
unauthorized personnel. The HCDW
employs National Institute of Standards
and Technology (NIST) Physical and
Environmental Security Controls
identified in Special Publication SP
800-53 revision 3. The HCDW will
perform a Security Assessment and
Authorization (SA&A) following the
NIST 800-53 rev 3 standard in order to
obtain an Authority to Operate (ATO).
Users within the Office of Planning and
Policy Analysis (PPA) use the system to
perform cost and quality analysis for
health care plans. Two sub-groups of
PPA users have been identified in the
system, those who are permitted to view
PII and those who are not. HCDW
employs role based access controls
(RBAC) to further restrict access to data
contained within HCDW based on users’
roles. The data warehouse is fully
compliant with all applicable provisions
of the Privacy Act, Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPAA) as an oversight agency, Federal
Information Security Management Act
(FISMA), Records Act and National
Institute of Standards and Technology
(NIST) guidance.

RETENTION AND DISPOSAL:

The records in this system are
retained for 7 years. Computer records
will be destroyed by electronic erasure.
The system has been approved by
NARA to maintain a 7-year record
retention.

SYSTEM MANAGERS AND ADDRESSES:

The system manager is Dennis Hardy,
PMP, HCDW Project Manager, U. S.
Office of Personnel Management, 1900 E
Street NW., Room 2340A, Washington,
DC 20415, 202—606—4281.

NOTIFICATION AND RECORD ACCESS PROCEDURE:

Individuals wishing to determine
whether this system of records contains
information about them may do so by
writing to the U.S. Office of Personnel
Management, FOIA/PA Requester
Service Center, 1900 E Street NW.,
Room 5415, Washington, DC 20415—
7900 or by emailing foia@opm.gov.
Individuals must furnish the following
information for their records to be
located:

1. Full name.

2. Date and place of birth.

3. Social security number.

4. Signature.

5. Available information regarding the
type of information requested.

6. The reason why the individual
believes this system contains
information about him/her.

7. The address to which the
information should be sent.

Individuals requesting access must
also comply with OPM’s Privacy Act
regulations regarding verification of
identity and access to records (5 CFR
297).

CONTESTING RECORD PROCEDURE:

Individuals wishing to request
amendment of records about them
should write to the Office of Personnel
Management, FOIA/PA Requester
Service Center, 1900 E Street NW.,
Room 5415, Washington, DC 20415—
7900. ATTN: Planning and Policy
Analysis.

Individuals must furnish the
following information in writing for
their records to be located:

1. Full name.

2. Date and place of birth.

3. Social Security Number.

4. Gity, state, and zip code of their
Federal Agency.

5. Signature.

6. Precise identification of the
information to be amended.

Individuals requesting amendment
must also follow OPM’s Privacy Act
regulations regarding verification of
identity and amendment to records (5
CFR 297).

RECORD SOURCE CATEGORIES:

OPM, which has the authority to
obtain this information from health care
insurers and administrators contracted
by OPM to manage the FEHBP, will
obtain the FEHBP records from health
care insurers and administrators. OPM’s
OIG also maintains the FEHBP records
in a separate system of records under its
own authorities.

SYSTEM EXEMPTIONS:

None.

[FR Doc. 2013—09133 Filed 4-17-13; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6325-63-P

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

Proposed Collection; Comment
Request

Upon Written Request, Copies Available
From: Securities and Exchange
Commission, Office of Investor
Education and Advocacy,
Washington, DC 20549-0213.

Extension: Rule 15¢3—1; SEC File No.
270-197, OMB Control No. 3235—
0200.

Notice is hereby given that pursuant
to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995
(44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.) (“PRA”), the
Securities and Exchange Commission
(“Commission”) is soliciting comments
on the existing collection of information
provided for in Rule 15¢3-1 (17 CFR
240.15c3—1), under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78a et
seq.). The Commission plans to submit
this existing collection of information to
the Office of Management and Budget
(“OMB”) for extension and approval.

Rule 15¢3-1 requires brokers-dealers
to have at all times sufficient liquid
assets to meet their current liabilities,
particularly the claims of customers.
The rule facilitates the monitoring of the
financial condition of broker-dealers by
the Commission and the various self-
regulatory organizations. It is estimated
that broker-dealer respondents
registered with the Commission and
subject to the collection of information
requirements of Rule 15¢3-1 incur an
aggregate annual time burden of 71,818
hours to comply with this rule and an
aggregate annual external cost of
$160,000.

Written comments are invited on: (a)
Whether the proposed collection of
information is necessary for the proper
performance of the functions of the
Commission, including whether the
information shall have practical utility;
(b) the accuracy of the Commission’s
estimates of the burden of the proposed
collection of information; (c) ways to
enhance the quality, utility, and clarity
of the information collected; and (d)
ways to minimize the burden of the
collection of information on
respondents, including through the use
of automated collection techniques or
other forms of information technology.
Consideration will be given to
comments and suggestions submitted in
writing within 60 days of this
publication.

An agency may not conduct or
sponsor, and a person is not required to
respond to, a collection of information
unless it displays a currently valid OMB
control number.

Please direct your written comments
to: Thomas Bayer, Director/Chief
Information Officer, Securities and
Exchange Commission, c¢/o Remi Pavlik-
Simon, 6432 General Green Way,
Alexandria, Virginia 22312 or send an
email to: PRA_Mailbox@sec.gov.
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Dated: April 15, 2013.
Kevin M. O’Neill,
Deputy Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2013-09139 Filed 4-17-13; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 8011-01-P

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

[Release No. IC-30462; 812-14148]

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, et al.;
Notice of Application and Temporary
Order

April 12, 2013.

AGENCY: Securities and Exchange
Commission (‘“Commission’).
ACTION: Temporary order and notice of
application for a permanent order under
section 9(c) of the Investment Company
Act of 1940 (“Act”).
SUMMARY: Applicants have received a
temporary order exempting them from
section 9(a) of the Act, with respect to
a guilty plea entered on April 12, 2013,
by RBS Securities Japan Limited (the
“Settling Firm”) in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Connecticut
(“District Court”) in connection with a
plea agreement between the Settling
Firm and the U.S. Department of Justice
(“DQOJ”’), until the Commission takes
final action on an application for a
permanent order. Applicants have also
applied for a permanent order.
APPLICANTS: The Royal Bank of
Scotland plc (“RBS plc”), Citizens
Investment Advisors (“Citizens IA”’), a
separately identifiable department of
RBS Citizens, N.A., and the Settling
Firm (each an “Applicant” and
collectively, the “Applicants”).1

Filing Date: The application was filed
on April 12, 2013.
HEARING OR NOTIFICATION OF HEARING:
An order granting the application will
be issued unless the Commission orders
a hearing. Interested persons may
request a hearing by writing to the
Commission’s Secretary and serving
Applicants with a copy of the request,
personally or by mail. Hearing requests
should be received by the Commission
by 5:30 p.m. on May 7, 2013, and
should be accompanied by proof of
service on Applicants, in the form of an
affidavit, or for lawyers, a certificate of
service. Hearing requests should state
the nature of the writer’s interest, the

1 Applicants request that any relief granted
pursuant to the application also apply to any
existing or future company of which the Settling
Firm is or may become an affiliated person within
the meaning of section 2(a)(3) of the Act (together
with the Applicants, the “Covered Persons”) with
respect to any activity contemplated by section 9(a)
of the Act.

reason for the request, and the issues
contested. Persons who wish to be
notified of a hearing may request
notification by writing to the
Commission’s Secretary.

ADDRESSES: Elizabeth M. Murphy,
Secretary, U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, 100 F Street NE.,
Washington, DC 20549-1090.
Applicants: RBS plc, RBS, Gogarburn,
PO Box 1000, Edinburgh, EH12 1HQ,
Scotland; Citizens IA, c/o RBS Citizens,
N.A., Mail Stop RC 03-30, One Citizens
Plaza, Providence, Rhode Island 02903;
Settling Firm, Shin-Marunouchi Center
Building, 1-6—2 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-
ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Bruce R. MacNeil, Senior Counsel, at
(202) 551-6817 or Daniele Marchesani,
Branch Chief, at (202) 551-6821
(Division of Investment Management,
Exemptive Applications Office).
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
following is a temporary order and a
summary of the application. The
complete application may be obtained
via the Commission’s Web site by
searching for the file number, or an
applicant using the Company name box,
at http://www.sec.gov/search/
search.htm or by calling (202) 551—
8090.

Applicants’ Representations

1. Each Applicant is either a direct or
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc
(“RBSG”). RBSG and RBS plc, a
company organized under the laws of
Scotland, are international banking and
financial services companies that
provide a wide range of products and
services to companies around the world.
Citizens IA, an investment adviser
registered under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, is a separately
identifiable department of RBS Citizens,
N.A. Citizens IA serves as investment
sub-adviser to Aquila Narragansett Tax-
Free Income Fund (the “Fund”) (such
activity, “Fund Service Activities”). The
Settling Firm, a company with its
principal place of business in Tokyo,
Japan, engages in securities business
operations, including derivatives
trading.

2. On April 12, 2013, the Fraud
Section of the Criminal Division and the
Antitrust Division of the DOJ filed a
one-count criminal information (the
“Information”) in the District Court
charging one count of wire fraud, in
violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1343. The Information
charges that between approximately
2006 and at least 2010, the Settling Firm
engaged in a scheme to defraud

counterparties to interest rate
derivatives trades executed on its behalf
by secretly manipulating benchmark
interest rates to which the profitability
of those trades was tied. The
Information charges that, in furtherance
of this scheme, on or about October 5,
2009, the Settling Firm committed wire
fraud in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1343 by
transmitting, or causing the
transmission of, (i) An electronic chat
between a derivatives trader employed
by the Settling Firm and an RBS plc
derivatives trader, (ii) a subsequent
submission for the London InterBank
Offered Rate for Japanese Yen (“Yen
LIBOR”) to Thomson Reuters, and (iii)
a subsequent publication of a Yen
LIBOR rate through international and
interstate wires.

3. Pursuant to a plea agreement (the
“Plea Agreement”), attached as exhibit
to the application, the Settling Firm
entered a plea of guilty (the “Guilty
Plea”) on April 12, 2013, in the District
Court. In the Plea Agreement, the
Settling Firm, among other things,
agreed to a fine of $50 million.
Applicants expect that the District Court
will enter a judgment against the
Settling Firm that will require remedies
that are materially the same as set forth
in the Plea Agreement. In addition, RBS
plc entered into a deferred prosecution
agreement with DOJ (the “Deferred
Prosecution Agreement”’) relating to
submissions of the Yen LIBOR and other
benchmark interest rates. In the
Deferred Prosecution Agreement, RBS
plc has agreed to, among other things,
(i) Continue to provide full cooperation
with DOJ and any other law
enforcement or government agency
designated by DOJ until the conclusion
of all investigations and prosecutions
arising out of the conduct described in
the Deferred Prosecution Agreement; (ii)
strengthen its internal controls as
required by certain other U.S. and non-
U.S. regulatory agencies that have
addressed the misconduct described in
the Deferred Prosecution Agreement;
and (iii) the payment of $150 million,
which includes amounts incurred by the
Settling Firm for criminal penalties
arising from the Judgment. The
individuals at the Settling Firm and at
any other Covered Person who were
identified by the Settling Firm, RBS plc
or any U.S. or non-U.S. regulatory or
enforcement agencies as being
responsible for the conduct underlying
the Plea Agreement, including the
conduct described in any of the exhibits
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